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Condition Check one Check one
— excellent —— deteriorated _ unaltered X original site
_X_ good ruins _X altered ___moved date n/a
— ftair ___ unexposed
Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance
Number of Resources Number of previously listed
Contributing Noncontributing National Register properties

1 0 buildings included in this nomination: 0

. 0 0 sites

2 0 structures Original and historic functions

0 0 objects and uses: residential

3 0 Total

DESCRIPTION SUMMARY

The Borden Mines Superintendent's House is a large frame Italieanate villa
located on Maryland Route 36 near Frostburg in Allegany County, Maryland.
Constructed in the third quarter of the 19th century as the residence of Albert
C. Greene, superintencent of the Borden Mining Company from 1850 to 1882, the
house faces southeast and consists of several contemporaneous sections. The
main section of the house is two stories high, four bays long and three bays
deep with a pitched gable roof. A hipped roof two story section extends to the
southwest and is set flush with the rear gable of the mairn house, forming an.
L-plan cwelling. A square three story tower with a pyramidal roof is set into
the apex of the L. This tower serves as entrance and stair hall and provides
the strongest architectural feature of the house. A two-part one story wing with
hipped roofs extencs to the west of the main house. The southeast gable facade
and the southeast wall of the three story tower form the principal facade. A

large bay window with triple 4/4 sash with round-arched lintels projects
from the center of the southeast gable wall on the first floor. On the second
floor, a large 9/6 round-arched window is centered over the bay window,

flanked by a plain 4/4 sash window on each side. The facade is covered with
plain horizontal weatherboards. The three story tower projects forward
approximately two feet beyond the southeast gable wall. The entrance door is
centered on the southeast wall, with a round-arched ovening and semicircular
transom. A small window is centered on the second story stair landing and a
larger window is centered on the third story. The main section of the house and
the tower have bracketed cornices; the oversailirg eaves of the southwest L have
undecorated projecting rafter ends. The interior plan is asymmetrical, consisting
of an L shaped entrance and stair hall with four rooms radiatingfrom it to the
northeast and northwest and two more roome in the one story addition to the west.
The stair hcll and the southeast room are the two most significant rooms in the
house. The entrance tower nolds the open-string stair with a plain walnut rzil,
turned walnut newel and tapered balusters. In the southeast room, there is a
fireplace with a white marble mantel centered on the northwest wall, flankec by
paneled doors opening into two rooms to the rear. Original architrave trim
survives in every first floor room except the large room in the center of the

rear facade. All of the original architrave and baseboard trim survives on the
second floor, as well as the paneled doors, one white marble mantel and one

plain wood mantel.

For General Description, see Continuation Sheet Lo. 1
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GENERAL DESCRIPTION

The Borden Mines Superintendent's House is located on the northwest side
of Maryland Route 36 approximately one mile northeast of U. S. Route 40, and
one-fourth mile northeast of the Western Maryland Railroad viaduct. The house
is sited on the side of the steep hill that rises to the northwest of Route 36
and is reached via a dirt lane approximately 200 yards long.

The house is a large frame Italianate structure consisting of several
contemporaneous sections. The main section of the house is two stories high,
four bays long and three bays deep with a pitched gable roof. This forms the
northeast section of the house and is oriented perpendicular to the hillside
with the principal gable facing southeast. A hipped roof two story section
extends to the southwest and is set flush with the rear gable of the main house,
forming an L-plan dwelling. A square three story tower with a pyramidal roof
is set into the apex of the L. This tower serves as entrance and stair hall
and provides the strongest architectural feature of the house. A two-part
one story wing with hipped roofs extends to the west of the main house.

The southeast gable facade and the southeast wall of the three story tower
form the principal facade of the house. A large bay window with triple 4/4
sash projects from the center of the southeast gable wall on the first floor.

The 4/4 sash windows have round—arched lintels and are trimmed with plain
architrave trim embellished with simple scrolled brackets below the sill. On
the second floor, a large 9/6 round-arched window is centered over the

bay window, flanked by a plain 4/4 sash window on each side. The facade is
covered with plain horizontal weatherboards; the projecting bay is covered with
flush siding. A beveled horizontal "baseboard" conceals the low brick and stone
foundation at the base of the wall. The gable eaves and the projecting bay

eaves oversail and are boxed in, with decorative brackets below the soffit
applied against a wide, plain frieze.

The three story tower is ten and one-half feet square and projects forward
approximately two feet beyond the southeast gable wall. The entrance door is
centered on the southeast wall, with a round-arched opening and
semicircular transom. The door architrave consists of a plain fascia with
a bold, flattened ogee backband. A small window is centered on the second
story stair landing and a larger window is centered on the third story. The
second story window consists of a pair of two-light casements set in a plain
frame with flattened ogee backbard trim crossetted at all four corners. The
third floor window is segmentally arched, with a pair of five-light casements
and architrave trim that matches the front door. A small balcony with a decora-
tive balustrade originally projected in front of this window, but the ballus-
trade has been removed, leaving a pent-like overhang supported by scrolled
brackets. The plain siding, "baseboard" foundation and the bracketed cornice
of the hipped tower roof all match the southeast gable previously described.

See Continuation Sheet No. 2
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GENERAL DESCRIPTION (continued)

The southwest wall of the tower matches the southeast wall except there is
no door or window opening on the first floor and no balcony below the third
floor window.

The northeast and northwest walls of the tower project up one story above
the roof of the main house. There are no openings in the northwest wall; a
pair of five-light, round-arched casement windows are centered in the
northeast wall.

The northeast facade of the southeast section of the house is four bays
long. The first floor openings extend to within six inches of floor level
and open onto a one story hip-roof porch with square columns that extends the
length of this facade. The two southeast openings are fitted with paired
three-light casement doors below a two-light transom. The two northewest
openings are fitted with large 6/6 sash below single light transoms. There
are four 4/4 windows ranged across the second story. The siding and bracketed
cornice on this facade matches the southeast gable. A large brick chimney is
centered on the ridge of the gable roof, which runs parallel to this facade.
The roof has recently been recovered with asphalt shingles.

The rear facade of the house, facing the hillside, is asymmetrical.
Original openings include a pair of 4/4 windows at the extreme southwest end
of the first story, a rear door to the left of the paired windows, and two 6/6
windows toward the southwest end of the second story. A bank of five 1/1
windows near the center of the first story are evidently the result of a later
alteration.

The bracketed cornice is carried up the gable eaves of the main section
of the house, but the eaves of the two story L section simply oversail and are
supported with the projecting, undecorated second story ceiling joists.

The southeast wall of the L is two bays wide, with two large 6/6
windows on the first floor and a pair of smaller 6/6 windows on the second
floor. The plain siding matches the rest of the building; the cornice is
boxed and supported by the rafter ends. The first story of the southwest
wall of the L is concealed by a one story hip-roof wing. A single 4/4
window is centered on the second floor of the L.

The one story frame wing consists of two parts, each forming one room.

The siding, windows, and cornice incorporate materials that match or complement
the main house and the L.

The interior plan is asymmetrical, consisting of an L shaped entrance
and stair hall with four rooms radiating from it to the northeast and
northwest and two more rooms in the one story addition to the west.

See Continuation Sheet No. 3
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GENERAL DESCRIPTION (continued)

The stair hall and the southeast room are the two most significant rooms
in the house. The stair rises from the southwest end of the hall and follows
the exterior wall to the stair hall, turning gracefully 90 degrees and rising
to the second story hall in the tower. It is an open-string stair with a plain
walnut rail, turned walnut newel and tapered balusters.

In the southeast room there is a fireplace centered on the northwest wall,
flanked by paneled doors opening into two rooms to the rear. The fireplace is
framed with a handsome white marble mantel and is fitted with a decorative
cast iron insert.

Original architrave trim survives in every first floor room except the
large room in the center of the rear facade. This room, the northeast room
and the kitchen have been renovated and modernized to some extent.

On the second floor, there are five chambers radiating off the L-shaped
stair hall. One small room to the southwest has been adapted as a modern bath.
The other four rooms are sleeping chambers. The stair continues up to a small
observation room in the third story of the tower. This run of the stair is
simpler, with a closed-string carriage, square newel and square balusters.

All of the original architrave and baseboard trim survives on the second
floor, as well as the paneled doors, one white marble mantel and one plain
wood mantel.

Stone foundations for two early outbuildings survive immediately to
the rear of the house.

Dr. and Mrs. Roberts, the present owners, have a copy of an early photograph
taken from the east. The only apparent changes since this photo was taken are
the removal of the balcony balustrade on the tower, removal of an elaborate
Victorian balustrade on the northeast porch, and removal of louvered shutters
on the windows.
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8. Significance « AL-V-A-011
Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below
____prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric _ community planning ____ landscape architecture____ religion
__1400-1499 ___ archeology-historic ____conservation — law ____science
____1500-1599 ___ agriculture —___economics —literature — sculpture
__1600-1699 _X_ architecture ___ education ____ military ___ social/
—_1700-1799 ___ art — engineering —__ music humanitarian
_X _1800-1899 ____ commerce ____exploration/settlement ____ philosophy —_ theater
—_ 1900- —___communications ° _X_ industry ____ politics/government __ transportation

—__ invention —_ other (specity)
Specifi¢ dates C. 1850 Builder/Architect unknown
IStalement of Significance (in one paragraph) Applicable Criteria: A, B, C

Applicable Exceptions: none
Level of Significance for Evaluation: 1local

The Borden Mines Superintendent's House is significant for its architecture
and for its association with the industrial history of Maryland's coal region.
Architecturally, the house is an exceptionally fine example of the Italianate
Villa style, uncommon in rural Allegany County. While other Italianate-influenced
houses in the county utilize traditional forms and plans with applied architectural
detail, this house reflects a more academic design. Its asymmetrical plan, three-
story tower, and many of its decorative details mark distinct changes from local
tradition and are consistent with new designs advocated by professional architects
in national publications. The design is clearly derived from Design XXII, 'Villa
in the Italian Style" in A. J. Downing's The Architecture of Country Houses. The
house retains an unusually high degree of integrity, with the majority of its
exterior and interior fabric and detail intact. The house derives additional
significance from its association with Albert C. Greene, first superintendent of
the Borden Mining Company, who held that position from 1850 to 1882. The Borden
Mining Company was organized in 1846 and continues to operate in the present day;
it is one of the oldest coal mining companies in the United States conducting
business in its original corporate form under an original charter. Albert C.
Greene played a significant role in the early development of the company. He
successfully managed its operations throughout the disruptions of the Civil
War and the subsequent period of formidable competition by large mining
conglomerates, labor unrest, and economic depression.

For History and Supporting Documentation, sce Continuation Sheet No. 4.
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HISTORY AND SUPPORT

The Borden Mines Superintendent's House is an exceptionally fine example of
the Italianate Villa style and is one of the most elegant houses of this ty?e
in rural Allegany County. While many utilize traditional forms.and p%ans with
applied architectural detail, this house reflects a more academic de§1gn. .
The asymmetrical plan, the three story tower and a number of decorative details
are a distinect change from local tradition and are consistent with new designs
advocated by professional architects in national publications. The de§ign‘1s
clearly derived from Design XXII, "Villa in the Italian Style," appearing in
A. J. Downing's 1850 pattern book The Architecture of Country Houses. The house
as built is faithful to the published plan and elevation, with only minor
variations: an L-shaped stair hall supplants the pantry shown in Downing's
plan; the veranda is rectangular, rather than semicircular; and the southwest
wing is two, rather than three, bays wide. (See Continuation Sheet No. 7.)

The most notable features of the exterior include the entrance tower, the
vertical board-and-batten siding with horizontal wood "water table," and the
bracketed cornice. The first floor interior is largely intact, while the
insertion of a modern bath is the only alteration that has occurred on the
second floor. Details of particular interest include the handsome interior
stair, marble mantels in the southeast rooms of the first and second floor, and
the elaborate architrave trim found in the stair hall and the southeast room on
the first floor.

Allegany County Land Records indicate that the house was the residence of
Albert C. Greene, who came from Providence, Rhode Island in 1850 to take the
position of superintendent with the newly-formed Borden Mine Company. The
company had been organized in 1846 by the Borden family of Fall River, Massachu-
setts. Their intention, at least in part, was to provide coal to fuel their
industrial enterprises in Fall River, which included an iron works, a steamboat
line, a calico works, a gas company, and a railroad line. At the time of its
incorporation, the company was among the three largest coal operations in
Maryland in terms of the acreage it was authorized to hold. The company
continues to operate today, making it one of the oldest coal mining companies

in the United States conducting business in its original corporate form under
an original charter.

Greene was elected to the company's Board of Directors in 1854.

His achieve-
ments were assessed in an 1882 publication:

The prosperous condition of the mines at present is largely due to
the administrative tact and energy of the superintendent, Albert C.
Green (sic), who is generally recognized as being one of the most
capable and intelligent coal operators in the country. Mr. Green
enjoys the reputation of being an undisputed authority on the
Allegany coal region, of which he is said to possess a more compre-
hensive knowledge than almost any other operator.l

See Continuation Sheet No. 5
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HISTORY AND SUPPORT (continued)

From its inception and through the Civil War period, the Borden mining
Company relied upon the Chesapeake and Ohio Canal to transport its coal to
market, and had constructed wharves at Alexandria to accommodate its fleet of
over sixty canal boats. Albert C. Greene was a director of the C & O Canal
Company as well. The records of that company include a body of correspondence
from Greene that reflects the interrelated concerns of the mining and trans-
portation industries in the coal region. Greene's letters from the Civil
War period chronicle interruptions to navigation on the canal and stiff
competition from coal companies in neighboring Pennsylvania, and document
labor conditions in the mines and on the canal. This information was seldom
reported by the local newspapers of the day.2

Greene's letters also illuminate events during the Depression of 1876-1877,
when most of the miners in the region were put out of work, either by layoffs or
by strikes called to protest pay cuts. At first, the Borden Mining Company was
among the few to maintain the pre-existing rate of payment (65¢ per tom, but
was unable long to withstand this economic drain in the face of increasing
shipping costs, and suspended production April 27, 1876. Early in 1877, the
company offered to put its miners back to work at 50¢ per ton - the rate at
which some employees of a competing company had volunteered to return. Greene's
compromise with the miners at 55¢ "for the present" enabled the company to
resume operations.3

Greene also went on record in opposition to an 1876 bill requiring
improvements to mine ventilation systems and creating the position of mine
inspector. His letters show him to be highly articulate; like the urbane
design of his dwelling, they bear out the appraisal of a contemporary writer:
"he is a gentleman of liberal education and cultured tastes . . ."5

The isolated rural setting of the house is unusual for a 19th-century
mining company superintendent's residence in Western Maryland; such residences
were typically located within densely-built mining communities which included
workers' housing and commercial enterprises.

The tract on which the house was constructed remained in the hands of the
Borden Mining Company until March 17, 1922, when it was subdivided and the 2.77
acres surrounding the house was sold to George W. Craig and Elizabeth B. Craig.

The deed recording this transaction contains a specific reference to "the house

formerly occupied by Albert C. Greene, now deceased . . . being a part of a
larger tract of land belonging to the party of the first part hereunto known
as '"Clifton'." (Allegany County Land Records, Liber 140, folio 127). (The

date of Greene's death is unknown.) The same 2.77-acre parcel has remained
associated with the house through all subsequent transfers.

See Continuation Sheet No. 6
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J. Thomas Scharf, History of Western Maryland. (Philadelphia, 1882; rpt.
Baltimore: Regional Publishing Company, 1968), p. 1445.
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Press, 1969), pp. 150-164.

3Harvey, p. 195
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

Beginning at a stake standing 100 feet Northeasterly from the entrance from
Maryland Route 36 to the road leading to the house, which stake stands 38.2 feet,
south 42 degrees West from a medium-sized maple tree marked with 3 distinct
notches; thence at the point of the needle as surveyed by William Hervey in
February, 1922, North 49 degrees East 211.8 feet to a stake; thence North 34
degrees 15 minutes East 165.4 feet to a stake; thence North 32 degrees West 201.7
feet to a stake; thence South 65 degrees 15 minutes West 420.5 feet to the North
edge of a farm road; thence with said road South 32 degrees 45 minutes East 245.5

feet; and thence South 58 degrees 30 minutes East 120 feet to the point of
beginning.

BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATION

The nominated property, 2.77 acres, comprises the house within its immediate
setting. A heavily-forested area lies to the north and west, and a concentration
of small-scale, modern dwellings lies to the south and east.
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10. Geographical Data

lAcreage of nominated property 2.77 acres

Quadrangle name _Frostburg, Maryland Quadrangle scale __1:24,000
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Verbal boundary description and justification

See Continuation Sheet No. 6

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state /5 code county code
state code county code
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12. State Historic Preservation Officer Certification

The evaluated significance of this property within the state is:

____ national ___ state _X local

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89—
665), | hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated
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DESCRIPTION Hovepcl

CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
~—EXCELLENT __DETERIORATED —UNALTERED —ORIGINAL SITE
—GO0D —RUINS —ALTERED —MOVED DATE
—FAIR —UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Borden Mines Superintendent's House is located on the northwest
side of Maryland Route 36 approximately one mile northeast of U.S.
Route 40, and )% mile northeast of the Western Maryland Railroad viaduct.
The house is sited on the side of the steep hill that rises to the north-
west of Route 36 and is reached via a dirt lane approximately 200 yards
long.

The house is a large frame Italianate structure consisting of several
contemporary sections. The main section of the house is 2 stories high,
four bays long and three bays deep with a pitched gable roof. This forms
the northeast section of the house and is oriented perpendicular to the
hillside with the principal gable facing southeast. A hipped roof two
story section extends to the southwest and is set flush with the rear
gable of the main house, forming an L-plan dwelling. A square three story
tower with a pyramidal roof is set into the apex of the L. This tower
serves as entrance and stair hall and provides the strongest architectural
feature of the house. A two-part one story wing with hipped roofs extends
to the west of the main house.

The southeast gable facade and the southeast wall of the three story
tower form the principal facade of the house. A large bay window with
triple 4/4 sash projects from the center of the southeast gable wall on
the first floor. The 4/4 sash windows have segmentally arched lintels
and are trimmed with plain architrave trim embellished with simple scrolled
brackets below the sill. On the second floor, a large 9/6 segmentally
arched window is centered over the bay window, flanked by a plain 4/4 sash
window on each side. The facade is covered with plain horizontal weather-
boards; the projecting bay is covered with flush siding. A beveled
horizontal "baseboard'" conceals the low brick and stone foundation at the
base of the wall. The gable eaves and the projecting bay eaves oversail
and are boxed in, with decorative brackets below the soffit applied against
a wide, plain frieze.

The three story tower is 10% feet square and projects forward
approximately two feet beyond the southeast gable wall. The entrance
door is centered on the southeast wall, with a segmentally arched opening
and segmental transom. The door architrave consists of a plain fascia
with a bold, flattened ogee backband. A small window is centered on the
second story stair landing and a larger window is centered on the third
story. The second story window consists of a pair of two-eight casements
set in a plain frame with flattened ogee backband trim crossetted at all
four corners. The third floor window is segmentally arched, with a pair
of five-light casements and architrave trim that matches the front door.
A small balcony with a decorative balustrade originally projected in front
of this window, but the ballustrade has been removed, leaving a pent-like
overhang supported by scrolled brackets. The plain siding, "baseboard"

foundation and the bracketed_ cornice of the hipped tower roof all match
the southeast gable previously described.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
—PREHISTORIC —ARCHEULOGY-PREHISTORIC —COMMUNITY PLANNING —LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE —RELIGION
—1400-1499 —ARCHEQOLOGY-HISTORIC —CONSERVATION —LAW —SCIENCE
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—1800-1699 Z_ARCHITECTURE —EDUCATION ——MILITARY _.SOCIALHUMANITARIAN
—1700-1799 __ART __ENGINEERING —MUSIC —THEATER
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Borden Mines Superintendent's House is an exceptionally fine example of
the Italianate villa style and is one the most elegant houses of this type in
Allegany County. While many utilize traditional forms and plans with applied
architectural detail, this house reflects a more academic design. The
asymmetrical plan, the three story tower and a number of decorative details are
a distinct change from local tradition and are concistent with new designs
advocated by professional architects in national publications.

The most notable features of the exterior include the entrance tower, the
vertical board-and-batten siding with horizontal wood ''water table", and
the bracketed cornice. The first floor interior is largely intact, while the
insertion of a modern bath is the only alteration that has occurred on the second
floor. Details of particular interest include the handsome interior stair,
marble mantels in the southeast rooms of the first and second floor, and the
elaborate architrave trim found in the stair hall and the southeast room on
the first floor.

There is some uncertaintly regarding the date of construction for this
house, referred to in the deeds as part of a tract called "Clifton'".
According to one tradition, the house was constructed in the late 19th
century for Davison Armstrong, an agent for the_Borden Mining Company and
President of the Big Savage Fire Brick Company. In recent real estate advertisements,
the house was listed as constructed in 1848, but no source for this date has
been established. Stylistically, the house is typical of the third quarter of the
19th century, but may possibly be a somewhat late example of Italianate architecture.

1
Thomas, James W. and T.J. C. Williasm. History of Allegany County,
Maryland. Vol. II, p. 105.
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Borden Mines Superintendent's House

The southwest wall of the tower matches the southeast wall except
there is no door or window opening on the first floor and no balcony
below the third floor window.

The northeast and northwest walls of the tower project up one story
above the roof of the main house. There are no openings in the northwest
wall; a pair of five-light, segmentally arched casement windows are
centered in the northeast wall.

The northeast facade of the southeast section ofthe house is four
bays long. The first floor openings extend to within six inches of floor
level and open onto a one story hip-roof porch with square columns that
extends the length of this facade. The two southeast openings are fitted
with paired three-light casement doors below a two-light transom. The
two northwest openings are fitted with large 6/6 sash below single light
transoms. There are four 4/4 windows ranged across the second story.

The siding and bracketed cornice on this facade matches the southeast
gable. A large brick chimney is centered on the ridge of the gable roof,
which runs parallel to this facade. The roof has recently been recovered
with asphalt shingles.

The rear facade of the house,facing the hillside, is asymmetrical.
Original openings include a pair of 4/4 windows at the extreme southwest
end of the first story, a rear door to the left of the paired windows, and
two 6/6 windows toward the southwest end of the second story. A bank
of five 1/1 windows near the center of the first story are evidently
the result of a later alteration.

The bracketed cornice is carried up the gable eaves of the main
section of the house, but the eaves of the two story L section simply
oversail and are supported with the projecting, undecorated second story
ceiling joists.

The southeast wall of the L is two bays wide, with two large 6/6
windows on the first floor and a pair of smaller 6/6 windows on the second
floor. The plain siding matches the rest of the building; the cornice is
boxed and supported by the rafter ends. The first story of the southwest
wall of the L is concealed by a one story hip-roof wing. A single 4/4
window is centered on the second floor of the L.

The one story frame wing consists of two parts, each forming one room.
The siding, windows, and cornice incorporate materials that match or
complement the main house and the L.

The interior plan is asymmetrical, consisting of an L shaped entrance
and stair hall with four rooms radiating from it to the northeast and
northwest and two more rooms in the one story addition to the west.

The stair hall and the southeast room are the two most significant
rooms in the house. The stair rises from the southwest end of the hall and
follows the exterior wall to the stair hall, turning gracefully 90 degrees
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and rising to the second story hall in the tower. It is an open-string
stair with a plain walnut rail, turned walnut newel and tapered balusters.

In the southeast room, there is a fireplace centered on the northwest
wall, flanked by paneled doors opening into two rooms to the rear. The
fireplace is framed with a handsome white marble mantel and is fitted
with a decorative cast iron insert.

Original architrave trim survives in every first floor room except the
large room in the center of the rear facade. This room, the northeast
room and the kitchen have been renovated and modernized to some extent.

On the second floor, there are five chambers radiating off the L-
shaped stair hall. One small room to the southwest has been adapted as
a modern bath. The other four rooms are sleeping chambers. The stair
continues up to a small observation room in the third story of the tower.
This run of the stair is simpler, with a closed-string carriage, square
newel and square balusters.

All of the original architrave and baseboard trim survives on the
second floor, as well as the paneled doors, one white marble mantel and
one plain wood mantel.

Stone foundations for two early outbuildings survive immediately to
the rear of the house.

Mr. and Mrs. Roberts, the present owners, have a copy of an early
photograph taken from the east. The only apparent changes since this
photo was taken are the removal of the balcony balustrade on the tower,
removal of an elaborate Victorian balustrade on the northeast porch,
and removal of louvered shutters on the windows.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT # 4D OR!GINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The house stands some distance to the north of Maryland Route 36,
the Mount Savage Road, in the Borden Mines area to the north of
Frostburg, Allegany County. It is located about one (1) mile north of
Main Street, U.S. Route 40, in Frostburg.

The house is a late nineteenth century Italinate frame structure of
two and a half stories, with asymmetrical massing, a three stories high
entrance tower, a stone foundation, and low bracketed roofs. It primarily
consists of two perpendicularly placed rectangular blocks massed arround
the tower with a one story wing projecting from the south side of the
southern block. The entrance tower has a round arch doorway with a fan
light and entablature trim. Apove this is a rectangular set of frame
casement windows with dog ears or crossette at the four corners of the
surrounding molding. The third floor of the tower has round top French
doors on three sides and a balcony on the front.

The facade of the northern block has a rectangular projection on
the first floor with three long and narrow round top windows in the front.
The second level of this block has a centered large round top window with
one long narrow window flanking on each side but not in Palladian form.
The gable end of this block faces the front. The south block has two
bays on each floor and a gable roof that runs north/éouth. The principal
windows have duouble-hung wooden sashes with four-over-four lights and
louvered exterior shutters.

The interior has the same asymmetrical and classical features that
characterize the exterior. Much of the interior is in near original
condition fabric wise although the two or three of the back rooms were
combined and panelled to make a large kitchen and "family room" area.

The building is structurally sound and the principal facade (east
side) is original.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

This house is probably the most ornate of the Italinate houses found
in the rural areas of Allegany and Garrett Counties. The typical
"country" Italinate of this area appears to have a symmetrical facade
on a center hall house with the characteristic low bracketed roof.
This house however, has the irregular massing, tall entrance tower,
and general decorative treatment that are more hallmarks of 'urban"
Italinates.

The house is believed to have been built for Davison Armstrong
sometime in the late nineteenth century. Armstrong was an agent
for the Bordon Mining Company and President of the Big Savage Fire
Brick Company.l (History of Allegany County, vol II, p. 105) The
property is referred in the deeds as being a part of a tract known
as "Clifton."

Although parts of the interior and the back or west side of the
exterior have been altered, the exterior retains much of its original
detailing and should be restored and maintained for architectural
reasons.
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Borden Mine Superintendent s Hs.
Allegany Co., MD

Orlando Ridout 9/82

Rear view from West
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